
Meeting contact Dianne Scambler or email dscambler@southribble.gov.uk

LICENSING ACT 2003 COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 19TH SEPTEMBER, 2017, ON THE RISE OF THE 
GENERAL LICENSING COMMITTEE 

CROSS ROOM, CIVIC CENTRE, WEST PADDOCK, LEYLAND PR25 
1DH

AGENDA

1 Apologies for absence

2 Minutes (Pages 3 - 4)

To confirm the minutes of the Licensing Act 2003 meeting 
held on 13 September 2016 (enclosed)

3 Declarations of Interests

Members are requested to indicate at this stage in the 
proceedings any items on the agenda in which they intend to 
declare an interest. Members are reminded that if the interest 
is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the 
Members’ Code of Conduct) they must leave the room for the 
whole of that item. If the interest is not a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest, but is such that a member of the public 
could reasonably regard it as being so significant that it is 
likely that it would prejudice their judgment of the public 
interest (as explained in the Code of Conduct) then they may 
make representations, but then must leave the meeting for 
the remainder of the item.

4 Constitutional Reform - Terms of Reference for the 
Licensing Act 2003 Committee

(Pages 5 - 18)

Report and appendices (enclosed)

5 Update on amendments to the Licensing Act 2003 (Pages 19 - 24)

Report and appendix enclosed.

6 Update - Out of Hours Enforcement Activity (Pages 25 - 28)

Report and appendix enclosed.

Heather McManus
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Public Document Pack



Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Licensing Act 2003 Committee 
Councillors John Rainsbury (Chair), Mike Nelson (Vice-Chair), Jane Bell, 
Mary Green, Harry Hancock, Ken Jones, James Marsh, Barbara Nathan, 
David Watts, Paul Wharton and David Wooldridge

The minutes of this meeting will be available on the internet at 
www.southribble.gov.uk

http://www.southribble.gov.uk/


Licensing Act Committee

Meeting held at 6.00pm on Tuesday, 13th September, 2016 in Cross Room, Civic Centre, West 
Paddock, Leyland PR25 1DH

Present:-

Cllr D H Suthers (in the chair), Cllr Ms J Bell, Cllr Mrs R N Blow, Cllr H G Hancock, Cllr K E L Jones, 
Cllr J D Marsh and Cllr D Wooldridge

In Attendance:- 

Tasneem Safdar (Senior Solicitor), Sharon Davies (Interim Licensing Manager), Charles Goodwill 
(Internal Audit Officer) and James Wallwork (Democratic Services Officer)

Public Attendance:-

No members of the public were present.

Officers:-

Officers: 1 other officer was present

Other Members: Councillor P Smith was also present

Minute
No.

Description/Resolution Action
By/Deadline

5 Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of 
Councillors Nelson, Rainsbury, Watts and Wharton.

6 Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest declared.
7 Minutes of the Last Meeting

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED:That the minutes of the 
meeting held on 14 June 2016 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the chairman.

8 Revised Policy Statement for Gambling Act 2005

The committee received a report which provided an 
update on the draft Gambling Policy.
Following a question concerning risk assessments 
from Councillor Wooldridge, the Interim Licensing 
Manager indicated that those betting premises which 
were located close to playgrounds or schools, would 
be identified as a high risk. Where there were specific 
issues, the risk assessment should identify the 
measures that would be used to mitigate the risk, in 
the case of premises near a school the premises 
could operate the Challenge 25 Policy.
Councillor Wooldridge also referred to the impact the 
risk assessments would have on the Planning 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Authority. He was informed that the Planning Authority 
was a statutory consultee and any planning 
application would be considered separately to a 
licensing application,
The Interim Planning Manager responded to questions 
from Councillor Ms Bell concerning raffles and 
quizzes. In respect of raffles these would mainly be 
dealt with under the small society lotteries regulations 
whereas Quizzes which offer prizes are considered as 
skill and is therefore not included within this policy.
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED:1. That the draft policy 
be noted and officers be authorised to undertake a 
formal consultation.
2. That the Director of Neighbourhoods, 
Environmental Health and Assets in consultation with 
the Chairman of Licensing Act Committee, be 
authorised to consider any responses and amend the 
policy if necessary to reflect the consultation, before it 
is presented to full Council for adoption.

(The meeting finished at 6.18pm)

......................................................................  Chairman

Published on Tuesday, 20th September, 2016

Page 4



1

REPORT TO ON

      
GENERAL LICENSING COMMITTEE 

AND 
LICENSING ACT COMMITTEE 

19 SEPTEMBER 
2017

Jan 2017

TITLE AUTHOR

GENERAL LICENSING COMMITTEE AND LICENSING ACT 
COMMITTEE – REVIEW OF CONSTITUTION AND INTRODUCTION 
OF MEMBER PANELS FOR HEARINGS OF THE GENERAL 
LICENSING COMMITTEE

PETER HAYWOOD

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

1.1  The purpose of this report is inform members of proposals to amend the Terms of Reference, 
as set out in the Council’s Constitution, for both the General Licensing Committee and the 
Licensing Act Committee.  It is also the intention to introduce a more streamlined system for 
hearings of the General Licensing Committee with the introduction of smaller Sub-Committees.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that:

2.1 the draft Terms of Reference for (i) the General Licensing Committee (Appendix 2) and (ii) 
the Licensing Act Committee (Appendix 3) are approved and submitted to the Governance 
Committee on 29 November 2017 for consideration and recommendation to full Council 
on 17 January 2018; and

2.2 members of the General Licensing Committee note the proposed introduction of Sub-
Committee Panels of 5 members for hearings on matters within its remit.  

3.   CORPORATE PRIORITIES
The report relates to the following corporate priorities:

Clean, green and safe Strong and healthy communities

Strong South Ribble in the heart of 
prosperous Lancashire

Efficient, effective and exceptional council X

4.   BACKGROUND TO THE REPORT

4.1  As a result of previous difficulties encountered by the Licensing function, during early 2017 the 
Council requested that Commissioner Mary Ney (a senior manager at Rotherham Council with 
considerable experience in the transformation of Licensing services) undertake an 
independent review of the service.  Commissioner Ney visited the Council on 21 – 23 March 
2017, when she carried out a range of activities intended to enable her to better understand 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



2

the Council’s approach to the licensing of Private Hire / Hackney Carriage vehicles, drivers 
and operators.  These included interviews with senior Council officers and members, as well 
as attending a meeting of the General Licensing Committee on 21 March. 

4.2  On 23 March Commissioner Ney presented her review of the Council’s taxi licensing function 
to an audience which included members of the General Licensing Committee, as well as other 
officers and members.  Whilst Commissioner Ney found much about which she could speak 
positively, one of the areas she felt could be made more robust related to the conducting of 
hearings (where the Committee sits as a quasi-judicial body to determine the suitability of an 
applicant / driver to hold a licence with this authority under the statutory “fit and proper” test).  
Commissioner Ney noted that the Committee currently sat as a full committee during such 
hearings; this could involve up to 11 members sitting in deliberation at any one time.

4.3  Local authorities across the country conduct licensing hearings for taxi-related matters in a 
variety of ways, ranging from the use of a full committee to delegation to a single senior officer 
(although the trend is generally towards the use of smaller rather than larger bodies to conduct 
proceedings).  Each system has its own merits, and it is clear that the current South Ribble 
approach has the advantage of full member involvement in the process, with all members of 
the Committee playing a part in each decision. 

4.4  However, it is also considered that the current system has certain disadvantages including:

 the large number of members in attendance makes it hard for the committee to develop and 
sustain a co-ordinated line of questioning (especially in cases where the driver / applicant 
may be unwilling to engage or the allegation is of a particularly sensitive nature);

 the number of members present in a formal environment may intimidate some drivers / 
applicants and therefore undermine the committee’s attempts to gather information from the 
person in front of them; and

 larger meetings are administratively unwieldy, requiring a large number of members to 
attend each hearing session.  This problem will be exacerbated by the more proactive 
approach to Licensing enforcement which the Council has now adopted, with an increased 
number of hearings more likely in future.  

5.    EXISTING CONSTITUTIONAL ARRANGEMENTS  

5.1  A copy of the Council’s current Terms of Reference for both the General Licensing Committee 
and the Licensing Act Committee is attached as Appendix 1.  Members may consider this to 
be brief and not fully reflective of the Committee’s wider role and responsibilities.

6.    PROPOSED NEW ARRANGEMENTS         

6.1  In view of the above concerns it is proposed to adopt revised Terms of Reference for both the 
General Licensing Committee and the Licensing Act Committee.  The draft Terms of 
Reference for the General Licensing Committee and the Licensing Act Committee are 
attached as Appendices 2 and 3 respectively.  

6.2  As part of the process of revising the General Licensing Committees’ Terms of Reference, it is 
also proposed to introduce a new and more streamlined system for hearings. It is proposed 
that in future: 

 hearings should be heard by a Sub-Committee Panel consisting of 5 members only, drawn 
from the General Licensing Committee;           

Page 6



3

 in order to ensure consistency of approach across all the hearings which take place, each 
Sub-Committee Panel should be chaired by either the Chair or Vice Chair of the Licensing 
Committee;  

 other member vacancies on the Sub-Committee Panels would be filled on a rota basis to 
ensure that all members continue to play a positive role in the practical work of the 
Committee and contribute to its output; and

 it is suggested that – for matters concerning taxi licensing but not liquor licensing - 
members (other than the Chair/Vice-Chair of the Panel depending on availability) should be 
allocated in accordance with political balance.  

6.3  In all other respects, the agreed procedures for Sub-Committee Panels of the General 
Licensing Committee would remain the same as for a hearing at full committee, eg Legal 
Services will attend and draft the Decision Notice and the Licensing Manager will present 
details of the allegations.   

6.4  This new suggested approach would:

 enable members’ attendance at hearings to be pulled together more speedily and flexibly in 
order to prevent a backlog of hearings building up, as has occurred in the recent past;

 bring the hearing process into line with that of the majority of other licensing authorities, 
very few of whom are now seen to hold hearings at full committee level; and

 free up the main committees to strengthen their strategic role in the development of policy.  

6.5 It is important to note that the above proposal for 5 member panels only relates to the General 
Licensing Committee and does not extend to the panels convened under the Licensing Act 
2003.   Section 9(1) of the 2003 Act states that: 

“A licensing committee may establish one or more subcommittees consisting of three 
members of the committee.”

As a statutory requirement, the Council does not intend to alter its current approach and the 
use of 3 member panels will be retained for the Licensing Act Committee.  As with Sub-
Committees Panels for the General Licensing Committee, the panels for the Licensing Act 
Committee will be chaired by the Chair or Vice-Chair of the main committee.    

7.   TIMESCALES & PRACTICAL IMPLICATIONS 

7.1  With the agreement of the General Licensing Committee and the Licensing Act Committee, the 
amended Terms of Reference at Appendices 2 and 3 respectively will be submitted to the 
Council’s Governance Committee, as part of the wider review of the Council’s Constitution, at 
their meeting on 29 November 2017 and to full Council on 17 January 2018 for formal 
approval. 

7.2  If the move to Sub-Committee Panels for the General Licensing Committee is confirmed, there 
will be a need for officers to amend current procedures and documentation accordingly.    

8.   CONCLUSION

8.1  If adopted, the proposal to adopt revised Terms of Reference will update the Council’s 
constitutional arrangements for both the General Licensing Committee and the Licensing Act 

Page 7



4

Committee.  The proposed introduction of 5 member panels for hearings under the remit of the 
General Licensing Committee would provide a modern and streamlined approach to the 
conducting of hearings.  Whilst the General Licensing Committee’s workload in this regard is 
difficult to quantify in advance, it is undoubtedly increasing and the new structure would 
provide a more flexible and agile approach.  

8.2  Members of the General Licensing Committee would still be actively involved through their 
roles on the Sub-Committee Panels as allocated, as well as retaining an overall responsibility 
for policy development in an area of key importance for the authority.

9.   WIDER IMPLICATIONS AND BACKGROUND DOCUMENTATION

9.1 Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer
There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

9.2 Comments of the Monitoring Officer
The Licensing Committee has the power to delegate its functions to a Sub-Committee for 
hearings.  This should enable a more effective and streamlined approach.

Other implications: 

 Risk

 Equality

 HR

The introduction of smaller Sub-Committee Panels could 
potentially lead to members becoming disengaged from the 
Licensing process.  However, this will be overcome by regular 
scheduled attendance on Panels (the number of which is likely 
to increase overall), whilst the overall responsibility for policy 
development is still retained. 

None

None

 
10.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS (or there are no background papers to this report)

Appendix 1 – existing Terms of Reference
Appendix 2 – proposed Terms of Reference (General Licensing Committee)
Appendix 3 – proposed Terms of Reference (Licensing Act Committee)

Page 8



Licensing Committee                        Appendix 1 

1. Licensing Committee

Appointed by Council at the first business meeting of the municipal year.

The Licensing Committees are responsible for dealing with the Council’s Licensing functions, 
including Taxi Licensing, Liquor Licensing, and Gambling Act applications.  

2. Membership 

(a) Political Balance.  The committee is required to have proportional political balance in 
accordance with the requirements of the Local Government & Housing Act 1989 

(b) Membership.  Up to a maximum of x members.
         
(c)  Chairing the Committee.  Chairman appointed by the Council at the first             
          business meeting of the new municipal year. 

3. Terms of Reference 

General Licensing Committee 

Taxi and miscellaneous licensing 

Functions relating to licensing and registration as set out in Schedule 1 to the Local Authorities 
(Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 but excluding those functions 
relating to licensing under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 
2005.

Health and safety

Functions relating to health and safety under any “relevant statutory provision” within the 
meaning of Part 1 of the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, to the extent that those 
functions are discharged otherwise than in the Council’s capacity as employer

Licensing Act Committee 

Functions relating to licensing under the Licensing Act 2003.

Functions relating to gambling under the Gambling Act 2005.

Functions relating to licensing under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



GLC Terms of Reference – Page 1 

 
General Licensing Committee         

1. General Licensing Committee

Appointed by Council at the first business meeting of the municipal year. 

The General Licensing Committee will sit as a full committee and is responsible for dealing 
with the Council’s taxi licensing and other specific licensing functions. 

2. Membership

a) Political Balance

The General Licensing Committee is required to have proportional political balance in 
accordance with the requirements of the Local Government & Housing Act 1989.   

b) Membership

11 members 

c) Chairing the Committee

Chairman to be appointed by the Council at the first business meeting of the new 
municipal year.  

3. Terms of Reference

The General Licensing Committee will be responsible for overseeing, developing and 
approving taxi licensing policy (with the exception of matters reserved by statute to Council 
or the Cabinet). 

This includes: 

a) overseeing the processes to determine the application of the statutory “fit and proper”

test, and vehicle age policy, to ensure public safety within the Borough;

b) all functions of the Council relating to applications for private hire, hackney carriage

and miscellaneous licences;

c) receiving reports on these matters, and on the functions delegated to the Taxi and
Miscellaneous Panels and to officers. To call for a report on any individual case;

d) determining the procedures to be followed in handling applications, notices,
representations and all hearings, subject to the relevant Regulations;

e) exercising the functions of the Taxi Licensing and Miscellaneous Sub-Committee
Panels in any case referred to the Committee by its Chair, or by the Chair of a Taxi
Licensing and Miscellaneous Sub-Committee Panel, on the grounds of its special
significance or difficulty;

Appendix 2

Page 11



GLC Terms of Reference – Page 2 

 

 
f) meeting with representatives of the licensed taxi trades to discuss matters of 

concern;  
 

g) setting fees and charges (subject to their formal adoption by full council);  
 

h) presenting an annual report on the work of the General Licensing Committee to 
Council; and 

 
i) in a Council Election Year when there is a need to hold a hearing in the period 

between Election day and the Annual Meeting of the Council, those Members of the 
General Licensing Committee who are re-elected as Councillors shall meet as the 
General Licensing Committee to exercise any of the functions of the Taxi Licensing 
and Miscellaneous Sub-Committee Panels, or under (e) above, and shall elect a 
Chair for the meeting. 
 

Excluded from the General Licensing Committee’s terms of reference are: 
 

(a) any functions specifically delegated to the Licensing Act Committee, or those 
Licensing Act functions statutorily referred to the Cabinet and the full Council 
(including the formal review and determination of the Licensing Policy Statement and 
the Statement of Gambling Policy); and 
 

(b) the functions delegated to the Taxi Licensing and Miscellaneous Sub-Committee 
Panels as set out below, except where referred back to the Committee under sub-
paragraph 3(e) above. 

 
4.  Delegation to Sub-Committee - Taxi Licensing and Miscellaneous Sub-Committee 

Panel 

This sub-committee is a Sub-Committee Panel of the General Licensing Committee, 

appointed by that Committee under the Local Government Act 1972. 

The General Licensing Committee has arranged under S101(1) of the Act for the discharge 

of such of the Council’s functions as are within the Sub-committee Panel’s terms of 

reference in Section 5 below. 

Certain functions are delegated by the Taxi Licensing and Miscellaneous Sub-Committee 
Panel to officers.  These are identified in the Scheme of Delegation which can found in the 
Constitution.     
 
5. Taxi Licensing and Miscellaneous Sub-Committee Panel - Terms of Reference 
 
Sitting as a Sub-Committee Panel comprising of 5 members (drawn from the full Committee 
on a politically proportionate basis):- 
 
The Chair of the Taxi Licensing and Miscellaneous Sub-Committee Panel will be the Chair or 
Vice Chair (depending on availability) of the General Licensing Committee. 
 
The Sub-Committee Panel will carry out the following functions:- 
 
Except for matters of Policy, to undertake all licensing functions, powers and duties 
conferred by the Local Government Act 1972 including (but not limited to) the matters set out 
immediately below and also subsequently in Paragraph 5: 
 

Page 12



GLC Terms of Reference – Page 3 

 

a) where evidence exists to cast doubt on whether the applicant / driver is a fit and 
proper person, the Sub-Committee Panel may determine all matters relating to the 
grant, renewal or review of taxi licences (which, in the interest of clarity, in these 
Terms of Reference shall include hackney carriage and private hire vehicle driver 
and operator licences), and to suspend or revoke taxi licences in accordance with 
legislation;   

b) in cases where the Director has on public safety grounds revoked with immediate 
effect a taxi licence, to determine an application for the grant of a new licence 
submitted by the driver/operator whose earlier licence was revoked;   

c) except for matters of Policy to undertake all licensing functions, powers and duties 
conferred by the Local Government Act 1972 including but not limited to the matters 
set out below: 

i) power to license hackney carriages and private hire vehicles; 
ii)  power to license drivers of hackney carriages and private hire vehicles; 
iii) power to license operators of hackney carriages and private hire vehicles; 
iv) power to license sex shops and sex cinema and sex entertainment venues; and 
v)  power to grant medical exemption from the obligation to provide support to 

wheelchair users and/or carry assistance dogs and  
vi) power to licence scrap metal dealers  

 
 
Paragraph 5  
Schedule 1B – Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) 
Regulations 2000 
(Licensing and registration functions (in so far as not covered by any other paragraph 
of this Schedule)) 
 
The list below relates to the exercise of specialist legislation including (but not exclusively) 
the following, subject to the functions not being Council functions as set out above: 

1.  Power to license hackney 

carriages and private hire 

vehicles.  

(a) as to hackney carriages, the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 

(10 & 11 Vict. c. 89), as extended by section 171 of the 

Public Health Act 1875 (38 & 39 Vict. c. 55), and section 15 

of the Transport Act 1985 (c. 67); and sections 47, 57, 58, 60 

and 79 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 

Act 1976 (c. 57); 

(b) as to private hire vehicles, sections 48, 57, 58, 60 and 79 of 

the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

2.  Power to license drivers of 

hackney carriages and 

private hire vehicles.  

Sections 51, 53, 54, 59, 61 and 79 of the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

3. Power to license operators of 

hackney carriages and private 

hire vehicles.  

Sections 55 to 58, 62 and 79 of the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

 

 

Page 13

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/id/ukpga/1847/89
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/id/ukpga/1847/89
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/id/ukpga/1875/55
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/id/ukpga/1985/67
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/id/ukpga/1976/57


GLC Terms of Reference – Page 4 

 

4.Power to grant medical 

exemption from obligation to 

transport assistance dogs 

5.Power to grant medical 

exemption from requirement to 

provide support for wheelchair 

users  

Sections 168-173 of the Equalities Act 2010 

 

 

 

 

Section 165 and 167 of the Equalities Act 2010 

6. Power to determine suitability 

of scrap metal dealers to hold 

a licence (site licence or 

mobile collector) and to set 

fees as appropriate 

Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 

7. Power to license persons to 

collect for charitable and 

other causes.  

Section 5 of the Police, Factories etc. (Miscellaneous 

Provisions) Act 1916 (c. 31) and section 2 of the House to 

House Collections Act 1939 (c. 44)(31). 

8. Power to issue a street 
trading licence 

 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 

9.  Power to issue cinema and 

cinema club licences.  

Section 1 of the Cinema Act 1985 (c. 13). 

10.  Power to license sex 

shops and sex cinemas.  

The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, 

section 2 and Schedule 3. 

 

Page 14

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/id/ukpga/1916/31
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/id/ukpga/1939/44
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2000/2853/schedule/1/made#f00044
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/id/ukpga/1985/13


LA Committee, Terms of Reference – Page 1

Licensing Act Committee                        Appendix 3 

1. Licensing Act Committee

Appointed by Council at the first business meeting of the municipal year.

The Licensing Act Committee will sit as a full committee and is responsible for dealing with 
the Council’s Liquor Licensing, Gambling Act and other specified functions.  

This is a Committee of the Council appointed by the Council under Section 6 of the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

The Council has arranged under Section 7 of the 2003 Act and S101 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 for the discharge by the Committee of such of the Council’s functions, 
as specified in the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) Regulations 2000- 
Schedule 1B as amended, and to undertake all licensing functions, powers and duties 
conferred by the Licensing Act 2003.

2. Membership 

a) Political Balance  

The committee is not required to have proportional political balance in accordance with 
the requirements of the Local Government & Housing Act 1989.  

b)  Membership  

11 members

c) Chairing the Committee  

Chairman to be appointed by the Council at the first business meeting of the new 
municipal year. 

3. Terms of Reference 

Sitting as the Licensing Act Committee, to oversee, develop and approve licensing policy 
(with the exception of matters reserved by statute to Council or the Cabinet).

This includes: 

a) responsibility for monitoring the operation of licensable activities under the Licensing 
Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005 within the Borough;

b) receiving reports on these matters and on the functions delegated to the Licensing 
Act 2003 Sub-Committee Panels and to officers. To call for a report on any individual 
case;

c) being consulted on the review and determination of the Licensing Policy Statement 
and the Statement of Gambling Policy including procedures for Council consultation 
with external stakeholders;

Page 15



LA Committee, Terms of Reference – Page 2

d) setting fees and charges as required and (subject to Regulations) to determine the 
fees payable for applications for premises licences and related matters under the 
Gambling Act 2005;

e) determining the procedures to be followed in handling applications, notices, 
representations and all hearings, subject to the relevant Regulations;

f) exercising the functions of the Licensing Act Sub-Committee Panels in any case 
referred to the Committee by its Chair, or by the Chair of a Licensing Act Sub-
Committee Panel on the grounds of its special significance or difficulty; 

g) presenting an annual report on the work of the Licensing Act Committee to Council; 
and

h) in a Council Election Year when there is a need to hold a hearing in the period 
between Election day and the Annual Meeting of the Council, those Members of the 
Licensing Committee who are re-elected as Councillors shall meet as the Licensing 
Committee to exercise any of the functions of the Licensing Act Sub-Committee 
Panels, or under (f) above, and shall elect a Chair for the meeting.

Excluded from the Licensing Act Committee’s terms of reference are:

(a) The functions statutorily referred to the Cabinet and the full Council including the 
formal review and determination of the Licensing Policy Statement and the Statement 
of Gambling Policy; and

(b) The functions delegated to the Licensing Act Sub-Committee Panels as set out 
below, except where referred back to the Committee under sub-paragraph 3(f) 
above.

4.  Delegation to Sub-Committee – Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee Panel

a) This is a sub-committee of the Licensing Act Committee, appointed by the Committee 
under the Licensing Act 2003.

b) The Licensing Act Committee has arranged under Section 9 of that Act to delegate its 
day to day decision making on such matters to the Sub-Committee Panel of such of the 
Council’s functions as set out in the terms of reference below.

c) Certain functions are delegated by the Sub-Committee Panel to officers.  These are 
identified in the Scheme of Delegation which can found in the Constitution.  

d) The Sub-Committee Panel shall consist of 3 members and will be drawn from the full 
Licensing Act Committee on an ad-hoc basis.  The Chair of the Sub-Committee Panel 
will either be the Chair or Vice Chair (depending on availability) of the Licensing Act 
Committee.

5. Licensing Act Sub-Committee Panel – Terms of Reference

Sitting as a Sub-Committee Panel comprising of 3 members, the Sub-Committee Panel will 
carry out the following functions:-

Page 16



LA Committee, Terms of Reference – Page 3

Except for matters of Policy, to undertake all licensing functions, powers and duties 
conferred by the Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005, including (but not limited to) 
the matters set out immediately below and also subsequently in Paragraph 5:

Licensing Act 2003

Except for matters of Policy, to undertake all functions, powers and duties conferred by the 
Licensing Act 2003 including (but not limited to) the matters set out below:

a) Power to determine applications for personal licences;  
b) Power to determine applications for premises licences and club premises certificate; 
c) Power to determine applications for variation of premises licence and club premises 

certificates;
d) Power to determine applications for transfer of premises licences;
e) Power to review premises licence and club premises certificates; and
f) Power to determine police or Environmental Health objections to temporary event 

notices.

Gambling Act 2005

Where representations on the following applications have been received and not withdrawn, 
to determine applications:

a) for premises licences;  
b) for variation of premises licences; 
c) for transfer of premises licences;  
d) for a provisional statement;  
e) for club gaming or club machine permits; and 
f) the cancellation of club gaming or club machine permits.  

In addition, the Sub-Committee Panel will:

g) decide whether to give a counter notice to a temporary use notice; 
h) take “action” under Section 202 where the review is heard by the committee; 
i) exercise its power to register pool betting operating licence;  
j) exercise its power to grant track betting licences; 
k) exercise its power to licence inter-track betting schemes;   
l) exercise its power to grant gaming and betting machine licences;  
m) exercise its power to register societies wishing to promote lotteries; and  
n) exercise its power to issue premises licences and to receive temporary use notices.

In these matters, the decision of a Sub-Committee Panel will represent that of the full 
Committee.  

Paragraph 5 
Schedule 1B – Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) 
Regulations 2000
(Licensing and registration functions (in so far as not covered by any other paragraph 
of this Schedule))

The list below relates to the exercise of specialist legislation including (but not exclusively) 
the following, subject to the functions not being Council functions as set out above:

Page 17



LA Committee, Terms of Reference – Page 4

1. Power to register pool promoters. Schedule 2 to the Betting, Gaming and 

Lotteries Act 1963 (c. 2)(12).

2. Power to grant track betting licences. Schedule 3 to the Betting, Gaming and 

Lotteries Act 1963(13).

3. Power to license inter-track betting schemes. Schedules 5ZA to the Betting, Gaming 

and Lotteries Act 1963(14).

4. Power to grant permits in respect of premises with 

amusement machines. 

Schedule 9 to the Gaming Act 1968 (c. 

65)(15).

5. Power to register societies wishing to promote 

lotteries. 

Schedule 1 to the Lotteries and 

Amusements Act 1976 (c. 32)(16).

6. Power to grant permits in respect of premises 

where amusements with prizes are provided. 

Schedule 3 to the Lotteries and 

Amusements Act 1976(17).

7. Power to license night cafes and take-away food 

shops. 

Licensing Act 2003

Page 18

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/id/ukpga/1963/2
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2000/2853/schedule/1/made#f00024
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2000/2853/schedule/1/made#f00025
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2000/2853/schedule/1/made#f00026
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/id/ukpga/1968/65
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/id/ukpga/1968/65
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2000/2853/schedule/1/made#f00027
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/id/ukpga/1976/32
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2000/2853/schedule/1/made#f00028
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2000/2853/schedule/1/made#f00029


1

REPORT TO ON

      LICENSING COMMITTEE 19 SEPTEMBER 
2017

Jan 2017

TITLE AUTHOR

UPDATE ON AMENDMENTS TO THE LICENSING ACT 2003 PETER HAYWOOD

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform members of the implementation of amendments to the 
Licensing Act 2003

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Members are requested to note the amendments to the Licensing Act 2003 as set out in the   
report below.

3.   CORPORATE PRIORITIES
The report relates to the following corporate priorities:

Clean, green and safe Strong and healthy communities

Strong South Ribble in the heart of 
prosperous Lancashire

Efficient, effective and exceptional council x

4.   BACKGROUND TO THE REPORT

4.1 The Policing and Crime 2017 (Commencement Number 1 and Transitional Provisions)
Regulations 2017 were made on 13 March 2017 and bring into effect a number of provisions 
within the Policing and Crime Act 2017 (“2017 Act”) from 6 April 2017.  These provisions 
amend various sections of the Licensing Act 2003 (“2003 Act”) including:

 the definition of alcohol;
 Summary Reviews;
 suspension / revocation of personal licences;
 relevant offences; and
 section 182 guidance.

4.2 The detail relating to each of these issues is set out in the relevant sections below.
.

5.   DEFINITION OF ALCOHOL (SECTION 135 OF THE POLICING AND CRIME ACT 2017)

5.1  The Licensing Act 2003 defines alcohol as “spirits, wine, beer, cider or any other fermented, 
distilled or spirituous liquor”. Section 135 of the Policing and Crime Act 2017 amends the 2003 
Act so that it includes alcohol in any form. Parliament’s intention in making this amendment is 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



2

to ensure that the law is clear that both (i) powdered and (ii) vaporised alcohol fall within the 
regulatory regime provided for in that Act.

       Powdered alcohol:

5.2  Powdered alcohol is not yet available in the UK. It has been authorised for sale in the United 
States of America but as far as is known it is not yet available to buy in America or anywhere 
else. It is designed to be mixed with water, or a mixer such as orange juice or cola, to make a 
drink of the normal strength (for example, a single shot of vodka).  It is lighter than traditional 
alcoholic drinks and its manufacturers claim that it will therefore be of benefit to airlines, 
persons on camping holidays etc. 

       Vaporised alcohol:

5.3  Vaporised alcohol is alcohol in the form of a vapour which can be inhaled either (i) straight 
from the air into which the vapour is pumped or (ii) by using an inhalation device.

5.4 Alcohol can be vaporised in various ways, eg by pouring it over dry ice in a narrow container or 
by using a simple container and open-flame heater.  It can then be inhaled with a straw (a 
picture illustrating the practice is attached as Appendix 1) or by using another device such as 
an asthma nebulizer). A further method is to pour alcohol in a corked bottle with a pipe, and 
then use a bicycle pump to make a spray. 

5.5  Vaporised alcohol is currently available in the UK, and is understood to be supplied in 
nightclubs in cities such as Manchester.

6.  SUMMARY REVIEWS (SECTIONS 136 AND 137 OF THE POLICING AND CRIME ACT 2017)

6.1  If licensed premises become associated with serious crime or disorder, the police can - under 
Section 53A of the 2003 Act - make an application to the licensing authority for a summary 
review of the licence. Under Section 53B of the 2003 Act, the licensing authority must consider 
whether it is necessary to impose interim steps in the form of temporary conditions on a 
licence; for example, suspending the premises licence. These interim steps enable the 
licensing authority to act quickly in cases where there has been serious crime or serious 
disorder; precautionary steps can be taken immediately without the authority first being obliged 
to hear representations from the holder of the premises licence in question. The hearing to 
review the licence must take place within 28 days of receipt of the application.

6.2  However, should the licensing authority impose interim steps under Section 53B, the premises 
licence holder is then entitled to make representations in respect of those steps; and the 
licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider those representations within 48 hours of 
receipt.  The 2003 Act as currently drafted does not limit the number of times that the premises 
licence holder may make representations, with the result that the licensing authority must hold 
a hearing each time that relevant representations are received.

6.3  Section 136 of the 2017 Act amends Section 53B of the 2003 Act so that - after the licensing 
authority has held a hearing to consider the interim steps - the premises licence holder may 
only make further representations if there has been a material change in circumstances since 
that hearing.  An example of a material change would be where the licensee has employed 
additional door staff or increased security at the premises (which may mean that a restriction 
on the hours during which alcohol may be sold may no longer be necessary). There may also 
be changes in circumstance, for example if the summary review application has arisen from 
gang-related violence or drug offences on the premises and the individuals involved are being 
dealt with by the criminal justice system.

Page 20



3

6.4  Furthermore, there has been legal ambiguity over whether or not interim steps remain in place 
until the process is complete / once appeal channels have been exhausted, or whether they 
can be withdrawn or amended at an earlier stage.  This position has now been clarified by 
section 137 of the 2017 Act, which amends the 2003 Act to introduce a new Section 53D. This 
provides that the interim steps must be considered at the review hearing, and that the 
licensing authority has power at that stage to consider representations made in relation to the 
interim steps and to consider whether to modify or withdraw them. It also gives the licensing 
authority power to impose interim steps at the review hearing, but makes clear that these will 
only have effect until:

 the time or period in which to appeal against the decisions taken on summary review has 
expired;

 any appeal against the review of the premises licence is disposed of; or 
 the end of the period determined by the licensing authority (which may be no longer that either 

of the two preceding time frames).

6.8  Parliament’s intention in making this amendment is to ensure that licensing authorities can 
take appropriate action to protect the public and that businesses subject to summary reviews 
are treated fairly.

7.  SUSPENSION / REVOCATION OF PERSONAL LICENCES (SECTION 138 OF THE 
POLICING AND CRIME ACT 2017)

7.1  The 2003 Act contains provision to enable a criminal court to order the forfeiture or suspension 
of a personal licence where the licensee has been convicted before the court of a “relevant 
offence” (namely one of the offences specified in Schedule 4 to the 2003 Act). Where a 
personal licence is revoked or suspended, the licensee will be prevented from selling or 
supplying alcohol.

7.2  The definition of a “relevant offence” has included criminal offences under:

 Licensing legislation;
 Theft;
 Production, possession or supply of a controlled drug; and
 Driving under the influence of drink or drugs.

However, this has now been widened – see section 8 below. 

7.3  Where the holder of a personal licence is charged with a relevant offence, he or she must 
produce the licence to the court before the case against him or her is first heard. A personal 
licence holder is also required to notify the licensing authority where he or she is convicted of a 
relevant offence. However, the licensing authority has not had the ability to suspend or revoke 
the licence; nor has there been provision for a court to order the forfeiture or suspension of a 
licence other than at the point the licensee is being sentenced for a relevant offence.

7.3  Section 138 amends the 2003 Act to give licensing authorities the power to revoke or suspend 
a personal licence and sets out the procedure for doing so, and the steps it must take if it 
decides not to revoke the licence. The power to do so can be delegated to a subcommittee.

8.  ADDITION OF FURTHER RELEVANT OFFENCES (SECTION 139 OF THE POLICING AND 
CRIME ACT 2017)  

8.1  Section 139 of the 2017 Act amends Schedule 4 of the 2003 Act to include additional relevant 
offences; in particular it expands the list of relevant offences to include:

Page 21



4

 the sexual offences listed in Schedule 3 of the Sexual Offences Act 2003;
 the violent offences listed in Part 1 of Schedule 15 to the Criminal Justice Act 2003;
 the manufacture, importation and sale of realistic imitation fire arms contrary to section 36 of 

the Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006;
 using someone to mind a weapon contrary to section 28 of the Violent Crime Reduction Act 

2004; and
 the terrorism –related offences listed in section 41 of the Counter- terrorism Act.

9.  GUIDANCE (SECTION 140 OF THE POLICING AND CRIME ACT 2017)

9.1  The current provision under Section 182 of the 2003 Act provides that the Secretary of State 
must issue guidance to licensing authorities on the discharge of their functions under the Act, 
and the guidance must be approved by Parliament before it can be issued. Section 140 of the 
2017 Act amends the 2003 Act to remove the parliamentary procedure and the guidance will 
take effect as soon as it is published.

10.   WIDER IMPLICATIONS AND BACKGROUND DOCUMENTATION

10.1 Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer

There are no financial implications arising as a result of this report.

10.2 Comments of the Monitoring Officer
The amendments made by the Policing and Crime Act 2017 to the Licensing Act 2003 will 
provide additional powers to the Licensing Authority.  The amendments have also clarified 
ambiguities in the law in respect of the time period during which interim steps will have effect.

Other implications: 

 Risk

 Equality

 HR

Risk - Improved public safety will enhance the Council’s 
reputation
Equality – none

HR - none

 
11.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS (or there are no background papers to this report)

Appendix 1 – photo – vaporised alcohol

Page 22



Appendix 1

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



1

REPORT TO ON

      LICENSING COMMITTEE 19 SEPTEMBER 
2017

Jan 2017

TITLE AUTHOR

UPDATE – OUT OF HOURS ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY PETER HAYWOOD

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

This report is to update members on the outcomes of a recent out of hours enforcement exercise 
undertaken by Licensing staff.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Committee is requested to note the outcomes of the enforcement exercise as set out in 
Appendix 1. 

3.   CORPORATE PRIORITIES
The report relates to the following corporate priorities: 

Clean, green and safe X Strong and healthy communities

Strong South Ribble in the heart of 
prosperous Lancashire

Efficient, effective and exceptional council

4.    OUT OF HOURS ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY 

4.1  In recent times, staff constraints within the Licensing Section have made it difficult for out of 
hours enforcement to take place.  However, Licensing staff are now in a position to undertake 
proactive enforcement of Licensing legislation with regard to the night time economy.  
Accordingly, Licensing Officers Chris Ward and Steph Fairbrother undertook an enforcement 
exercise from 9pm – 1am on Friday 11 August into Saturday 12 August 2017.  

4.2  The purpose of the visits was to:
 check that licensed premises were complying with their licence conditions, including 

specified precautions to minimise noise nuisance
 ensure that take-aways which did not have a late night refreshment licence were not trading 

past the statutory cut-off time of 11pm; and
 to ensure that there was no evidence of conduct which may cause concern in relation to 

Child Sexual Exploitation (eg unsupervised young people in the vicinity of licensed 
premises who may be at risk of “grooming”).             

4.3  A log of enforcement activity undertaken during the evening is attached as Appendix 1.  The 
log has been anonymised to protect the businesses concerned.  However, the log shows that, 
of the 9 visits undertaken, 4 were satisfactory / resulted in no further action and 5 did reveal an 
issue to be addressed.  The satisfactory visits are depicted in green and the unsatisfactory 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



2

shown as red.  It is worth noting that one area of noise nuisance was unknown to officers prior 
to the exercise (and was only discovered by virtue of the enforcement activity undertaken) but 
has now been addressed via formal correspondence.

4.4  Members are requested to note the activity undertaken as set out in the log. 

5.   WIDER IMPLICATIONS AND BACKGROUND DOCUMENTATION

7.1 Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer

There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

7.2 Comments of the Monitoring Officer

It is important to exercise enforcement activity regularly, so as to identify and address 
any issues of non-compliance with legislation/conditions.  

Other implications: 

 Risk

 Equality

 HR

Inspections help to minimise the risk of nuisance and other 
issues (including Child Sexual Exploitation) caused by non-
compliance with Licensing legislation. 

None

None

 
8.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS (or there are no background papers to this report)

Appendix 1 – log of Licensing enforcement activity from 11.8.17

Page 26



Appendix 1 

Log of enforcement activity 11.8.17 

 Type of premises Purpose of visit Outcome of visit / action taken 

1 Bar  Visit following a noise complaint from local resident Premises was complying with conditions of the 
Licence. Outcome was successful and letter sent to 
resident to confirm findings.  

2 Restaurant Visit on noise issue – problem was unknown to officers 
beforehand / only discovered when dealing with 1) above   

Premises is in breach of a condition of their Licence. 
Sent letter to Licence Holder to address the situation. 
Given 7 days to respond.  

3 Takeaway Alleged to be operating after 11pm whilst suspended for none 
payment of an Annual Fee.  

Business closed at 11pm and Licence Holder advised 
to complete ‘surrender notice’ if not trading after 
11pm.  Advised would require a Late Night 
Refreshment Licence, if was looking to trade after 
11pm.. 

4 Pub  Noise complaints from Live Music and Patrons  Observed loud music and window/doors open after 
11pm. Premises is in breach of a condition of their 
Licence. Sent letter to Licence Holder to address the 
situation. Given 7 days to respond. 

5 Takeaway  Alleged to be operating after 11pm without a Licence Business was closed. No sign of activity. No Issues to 
record. 

6 Takeaway Premises Licence Conditions Check  Issues found; 
(i) Issue with CCTV - contact made with the Licensing 
Police Unit to investigate further.  
(ii) Licence Holder no longer involved with the 
business. New Application required immediately. 
Sent letter.   

7 Takeaway  Premises Licence Conditions Check  No Premises Licence Summary displayed – Given 
Copy to display. No other issues to address. 

8 Takeaway  Premises Licence Conditions Check  No Premises Licence Summary displayed – Given 
Copy to display. No other issues to address. 

9 Takeaway  Premises Licence Conditions Check  No Issues to record.  

Satisfactory / no further action needed 

Non-satisfactory / further action needed 

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Constitutional Reform - Terms of Reference for the Licensing Act 2003 Committee
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	5 Update on amendments to the Licensing Act 2003
	Appendix 1

	6 Update - Out of Hours Enforcement Activity
	Appendix 1


